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Early Letter by Miss E. I. Epsie
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ST e N, L

ariy Efforts To Establish A School

Miss E. I. Epsie, first applied to
have a State School established on June
30, 1890. This petition was written on
behalf of the Toor, Upton, Shorten,
Graham, Farrow, Thurston, Cameron,
Ramsley, Joyce, Glenister, Webb,
Bayman, Roediger and Allen families,
who were living on the Braybrook
Station Estate. At that time, Miss
Epsie conducted a private school for
about twenty-five children, in the front
room of a long narrow building in
Morris Street, originally intended as a
shop.

When nothing eventuated from the
first application, another petition was
made through the local Member of
Parliament on November 17, 1890.
Additional family names mentioned
then were: Grant, Lancashire, Price,
Roberts, Cerny, Pope and Knowles. The
nearest State School at that time was
No. 1102 Braybrook.

When the Department referred the
application to the district Board of
Advice No. 108, the Correspondent
John Cropley's reply was: "It is
premature to establish a school before
the permanency of the settlement s
more assured." Miss Epsie, however,
claimed that as the township contained
the extensive workshops of Wright and
Edwards Ltd., which employed about
400 persons, "with every prospect soon
of a large increase in numbers", there
was urgent need for the establishment
of a State School. Therefore the
Inspector General, John Main, his
Assistant Charles Tynan, and the Senior
Inspector Samuel J. Swindley decided

"to open a school in a rented building
as an experiment".

Just as this decision had been
made, H. G. Hanna, Estate Agent of
Ascot Vale, wrote on January 26, 1891
to the Hon. Alfred Deakin, Member for
South Yarra, asking him to inform Sir
Frederick Sargood, the Minister for
Education, that he (Hanna) was in the
process of building a small hall (40' x
27" on the north east corner of
Hampshire Road and Benjamin Street,
It was to be called Braybrook Public
Hall, and could be leased for school
purposes. Early in February 1891,
William Thurston offered the
Department, for 12/- a week, the use of
the two front rooms, together measuring
only 30' x 15',. of the premises where
Miss Epsie had previously conducted
her private school.

Apparently without knowing what
was being planned, a public meeting of
the inhabitants of the "Braybrook
Station Estate” was held on February
16, 1891 to stress further the necessity
of establishing a school. At that
meeting the residents appointed Percy
Thomson, also an Estate Agent, to act
as their Correspondent or Secretary.

It was not till February 24, that H.
G. Hanna wrote to the Education
Department formally offering the use of
his Hall, including all necessary school
facilities, at a cost of £35 per annum.
The Department, however had already
arranged to rent the rooms belonging to
William Thurston.



In the News

itf \lement to “The Footscray Advertiser.”

The Braybrook Station

A STATE SCHOOL REQUIRED AND DEMANDED.

e ——

Pursuant to a notice by circular, a
crowded mecting of the inbabitants
and others interested was held on
“Monday evening lastin the old schoal-

om for the purpose of petitioning
.ae Minister of Public Instruction to
establish a Btate School in the locality,
which has now assumed the appearance
of a well settled township. The
meeting was called for 6.30 p.m.; and
soon ‘after the residents (chiefly
parents) began to congregate, and by
seven o'clock it was evideat the room
would not hold the crowd interested.
The owners of the estate, Messrs.
Johnson and Mills, had been invited,
and attended, as did also their agents,
Messrs, Percy Thomson and Co. Mr.
Thurston, a resident builder, was voted
to the chair. In a few words he stated
the objects of the meeting, and called
upon several gentlemen to move the
resolutions allotted to them.

Mr. Joyce moved, and Mr. Caflish
seconded, "That this meeting expresses
extrerne regret that the Minister of
Public Instruction has not seen his
way to comply with the petition pre-
sented in June last by the residents of
the Braybrook Station Estate at Bray-
brook and immediate locality asking
that a State School be erected in their
neighbourhood, south of the railway
line.”—Carried.

Mr. Caflish moved, and Mr. Grant
seconded, "That a deputation wait
upon the Minister of Public Instruction
to impress upon him the increasing
necessity for a 8tate School in the
neighbourhood indicated in the first
tesolution, and to present a further
petition upon the subject thereof.—
Carried.”

Mr. Allen moved, and Mr. Hill
seconded, “That the chairman of this
meeting be and is hereby instructed
and autherised to present the said
petition to the Honourable the Ministur
of Public Instruction on an early day,
and that as many of the parents and
others interested in the object sought
to be attained as can attend be re-
quested to accompany the chairman as
a deputation to the said minister.”

This resolution was supported by
Mr. Johnson, who commented in mild
and careflully-measured terms of repro-
bation on the conduct of Messrs.
Greig, Newman and Cropley, and by
others whom the meeting appeared to
know without him naming; and in con-
troverting what he spole of as the de-
ceptive and erroncous statements sent
in to the Minister of Lastruction by the
correspondent of the old Braybraok
school and his abettors, he recapitu-
lated the facls set out in the patition,
and supplemented them with others of
a character so clear and convincing as
to fairly “bring down the house,” and
placed the singular effurts of Messrs,
Crepley and Co. in anything but an

envious lightt He showed their con-
duct to have been unwise, because
their efforts must be futile, inasmuch
as they were trying to thwart the law of
the country, which enjoined that every
child of school age should have
facilities given, and not impediments
placed in their way to prevent them
obtaining education, which their
parents and the whole community pay
for; and ungenerous because as pro-
fessing Christian men they set at
nought and ruthlessly violated ths
leading maxim of their creed “to do
unto others as they would have others
do to them.” In conclusion Mr.
Johnson reminded them that they had
mow 150 municipal and parliamentary
votes at their command, and he trusted
that when the occasion arose they
would use each one wisely.

Mr. Pope moved, and Mr. Gerber
seconded, "That this meeting emphati-
cally coademns the action of the locat
Board of Advice (acting for and on
behalf of the inhabitants resident in
the Governnent township of Braybrook
over two miles north of the Braybrook
Junction) in advising the Minister of
Public Instruction to delay compliance
with the prayer of our said petition as
presenied in June last.”

This resolution was supported by
Mce. J. W. Thomson, who said that he
cordially support=d the resolutian. and
was greatly surprised they should have
to call such a mseting to obtain their
right to a State 8chool, which was
given to them by the law of the
country. He had been a correspondent
to sch)ls in Victoria moare than thirty
yeard agn, and was appointed as such
when hx and the late Captain Dove
formed the school near the Gaelong
Road, Fotscray, with twelve or four-
teen scholars, and which now numbered
many hundreds. Footscray at that
time was not so promising for a school
as Braybrook is at present.  Usually it
is only necessary to address the
Minister, showing that at a given spot
there was a certain number of children
of school age, not within two miles of
any other school, and that they were
without a teacher, when the Depart-
msnt sent an offizer down to inquire
and verify. ‘That being completed a
teacher was sent down and an unclas-
sified school established. When a
locality had a numher equal to what
they now had, it was entitled to a
classified schoo! and alsoa eertificated
teacher with full emoluments, That
course would have bzen adopted in the
present case had it not bsen for the
foolish envy, missrable intriguss, and
gross impertinence of msn, soms of
whose namzas had been mentioned to
the meeting. Those intriguers had na
right to imaddle with their educational
rights, nor mar their children's present
and future welfare.  Ha cordially
agreed with Mr. Johnson that they

should take care that such mea should
have neither vote or power given them
in future. They should be literally
marked men, and the recollection of
their mean efforts should be be-
ueathed as an heritage totheirchildreen,

r, Thomson then detailed how, on
the r3th December last, he had found
Messrs. Cropley, Newman, and Greig
in the private schoolroom of Miss
Espie, trying to obtain from her a
statement as to requirements of a
schoal in the township, which was
afterwards used in such a garbled
and deceptive form in thoreletter to
the Minister of Instruction. Miss
Espie informzd him and others that
she was promised, on signing a certain
documsnt presented to her, that they
would recommend her as a teacher,
get her the State School, assist her to
get a certificate, and put her on the
staff of teachers. That three others
had since visited her, and promised
her the sams things, all of which she
had since found out were worthless
Rmmises only given for a purpose. She

a8 (as they were aware) since given
up her private schosl.  He would
leave them to draw their own in-
ferences respecting thg motives of
such men.

Me. Uptan, in warmly supporting
the resolution, said he was there when
Mr. Greig and others went to Miss
Espie's, and was so incensed at the
object and motives of these gentleman
that he lost his temper, and would
not tell the meeting how he described
their conduct.

Mr. Upton moved, and Mr. Joyce
seconded, “ That a schosl committee
of the whole of the patitioners {five
to form a quorum) be appointed, with
a view to make and carry out such
arrangements as may b= n:cessary to
obtain a school in ‘azcordance with
the Elucation Act and the decision
of ths Minister of Eluzation”—
Carried unanimously.

Mr Joyce movzd, and Mr Callish,
seconded, * That to assist to carry
out the foregeing resolutions and any
correspondence arising therefrom, Mr.
Percy Thomson be appointed
correspondent pro tem.”

Mr. Joyce moved, and Mr. Gerber
seconded “That Mr. J. G. Rosdiger,
one of the Shire councillors repre-
senting the Eastern Riding, be asked
to accompany the deputation to the

Minister of  Elucation."—Carried
unanimously.
Mr, Joyce said he movel this

resolution in relerence to Mr. Roz-
diger to show whethsr he was what
John Bunyan would call a “Mr,
Facing both ways" or not. From
what he had sesn and heard in con-
nection with this question hethought
that Mr. Roediger was against this
school, but he was not so epen in
his opposition as were Greig and Coy

and would not show his true colours.
This resolution was intended to test
him.

Mr. Pops: desired, with permission
of the mover, that their other local
representatives—Messrs. Dickson and
Mullinger—3hould also be asked in
tha same manner.

Mr, J. W, Thomson urged Mr,
Joyce to withdraw his resolution,
inasmuch as it was outside the objects
of the meeting, which applied only
to parents livintf on the estate and
others in the [ocality, who were
directly interested on the south
of the Junction Station. Noae
of the gentlemen named came
within the conditions, aud Mr Joyce
admitted that he knew Messn
Dickson and Mullinger were openly
Oflpascd to the proposed school, and
if they accepted the invitation it
would only be introducing useless
discord into the deputation where,
otherwise, we should have perfect
unanimity. Mr Pope's am2nimsnt
was not re:eivcd| but notwithstand-
ing Mr, Thomson's earnest appesl to
leave the ungenerous intriguers
severely alone the original mation was
carried by a large majority.

In discussing the several resolutions
the mesting was good-natured and
unanimaas throughout. Thz only
sore [eeling exhibited was at the
conduct of the Board of Advide for
"Old Braybrook,” which was de-
nounced by several of the speakers as
envious, mean, and altogether
unworthy of men who hal been
generously entrusted by the State
with the survcillance of any other
school, inasmuch as the absence of
thz Jate private teacher and their
unwise and ungenerous conduct hai
left from forty to sixty children on
the new township without any means
of education whatsocever, unless they
travelled more than two miles and
crossed a dangerous line of railway
(now taboged iy the department in
consejuence of twa or three adult
persons and also horses having been
recently killed at or near the said
crossing).

Mr. Johnson moved,and Mr. J. W~
Thompion seconded, a vote of thanks
to the chairman, which was carried
by acclamation, and thus ended the
first public mssting on the Braybrook
Station Estate.

A public hall is now in courss of
erection on the towaship by one or
two private gentlemsn living in one
of the woastern suburbs, and as a
literary and debating soziety is
also established, we may expect
stirring  platform  speeches, and
perhaps 'Yscenes " rivalling som: of
our older institutions from this time
forward,



peningof he chol

The school opened in the Morris
Street site on April 27, 1891 with
Thomas Flynn, the father of Flynn of
the Inland, as the first Head Teacher.
During July and August 1891, Thomas
Flynn wrote to complain, firstly of the
lack of ventilation in the schoolroom
-"the windows, being intended for the
shop windows, are fixtures" ; secondly,

of the leaking roof of the building, the
deep mud in the play yard, and the
constant traffic into the premises which
also contained a Dairy and a Wood
yard; and thirdly, of the fear of a
recurrence of typhoid fever outbreak -

" so prevalent in the early months of the

year".

PROPOSED TEMPORARY STATE SCHO0L LRAYBROOK JUNCTION.
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Thomas Flynn appointed Head Teacher
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Shoo! Transferr -

On August 22, 1891, District
Inspector James Holland wrote a long
report in which he recommended that
the school be transferred temporarily to
the Hall of H. G. Hanna, who earlier in
the month had renewed the offer to
lease his building for the reduced rent
of £30 per annum. Moreover, as the
average attendance had nearly doubled
from 35 to 62 in the short time since the
school opened, it was essential to seek
increased accommodation immediately.
Four days later, on August 26, Robert
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Armstrong, chairman of the Braybrook
Junction Local Progress Committee,
wrote to the Minister of Education
pointing out the disadvantage of the
Hall, and recommending that the
Department accept William Thurston's
alternative offer to build a proper school
room, "38ft x 18ft with gallery and
fireplace". The offer of H. G. Hanna,
however had already been accepted, and
so School No. 3113 transferred to its
new quarters at the corner of Hampshire
Road and Benjamin Street on
September 1, 1891.
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James Holland's Letter
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Search for State School Site.

At the end of 1891, and early in
1892, many sites were being considered
on which to erect a temporary
schoolroom, prior to the building of a
permanent school at some later date.

One site considered was in
Cornwall Road, and now part of
O'Brien Park. At a public meeting over
80 parents signed a petition in favour of
this site, "provided a subway be made
through the railway embankment at that
locality and a safe passage be thus
secured from the road in front of Wright
and Edward's Factory onto the school
yard".

Robert Armstrong, however,
condemned the site mainly because it
was too near to Wright and Edwards
Engineering Works, and it was
eventually revoked on September 26,
1917. Later it was Robert Armstrong
who drew the Department's attention to
the choice land offered for sale by W
.H. Cooper, H. Ingamells and J. T. Raw
on the "Post Office Estate, adjoining
Braybrook Junction Railway Station'".

Mureis Streal

TITLE, CROWN CERTIFICATE.
Bolicilor for the Vendors

So, on March 29, 1892, Chief Inspector
Alexander Stewart and District
Inspector James Holland examined the
portion of this estate in Derby Road and
recommended that six Allotments N*'s
104-106 and 119-121, in Section 18 of
the parish of Cut-Paw-Paw in the
county of Bourke be leased for £6 per
annum with the option of yearly
renewals for a period of five years.
Their recommendation was approved
by Thomas  Brodribb, the new
Secretary of the Department, and the
lease of the above site 120 ft. frontage
by 210 ft. depth became operative from
May 1, 1892. It was not listed in the
Government Gazette, however, until
December 16, 1892,

During September two portable
buildings joined together by a porch
were erected on the new site in Derby
Road, and the school transferred to its
new quarters on September 30, 1892.
The site was later occupied by the
Sunshine Girls Technical School
building.

PLAN OF SUBDIVISION OF THE

POST OFFIGE” ESTATF

Braybrook Junction.

Briog Prrt of Crown Allotmant 18, Parish of Cut.Puw.Paw, County ol Bourke
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malgin of e Brybrook Schools

In August 1893, at the height of
the depression that followed the
collapse of the land boom, it was
decided for economy reasons that State
School 3113 should amalgamate with
State School 1102 Braybrook, about
two miles away. Thomas Flynn was to
be in charge of both schools. The
actual amalgamation did not take effect
until January 1894 when William
Austin, the Head Teacher of Braybrook
and his wife Annie, were nominated to
a new school. So as not to disturb the
younger children, the first and second
classes remained at State School 3113,
with a Pupil Teacher in charge, and the
children in the third and higher classes
walked to Braybrook. This change was
made with the concurrence of James
Christie, Chairman of the District Board
of Advice, and Alfred Newman, the
Correspondent. In October 1895, as
there were then only 45 junior children
attending the school, one of the two
connected school rooms at S. S. 3113
was removed, but its destination is
unknown. The remaining school room
measured 24 ft. by 18 ft., and in a few
years would prove to be quite
inadequate for the rapidly increasing
population.

When the five year lease of the
site expired on April 30, 1897, Cooper,
Ingamells and Raw renewed it on an
annual basis at the same rental, payable
half yearly, and handed over its
collection to Estate Agent, Percy
Thomson. Then in April 1900 John T.
Raw, owing to sequestration of his
estate, authorised the rent be paid to

John G. Johnson, the Mortgagee and
new owner.

In March 1901, thirty-six parents
petitioned the Minister to restore the
adjunct State School No. 3113 to full
status, so that the children in third class
and above would not have to "walk
nearly three miles in the heat of summer
and the cold and wet of winter to the old
Braybrook School No. 1102." Two
similar deputations followed in March
and November 1902.

Thomas Flynn, writing privately
on March 3, 1903 said that there were
then "/39 children actually artending
both schools", and he quoted figures
which seemed to demonstrate that no
great advantage would be gained by
separating the two schools and
suggesting that the people who were
promoting the idea "did not understand
what they were asking for, and are
more anxious 1o keep themselves before
the public than to further the real
interest of those concerned". However,
State School 3113 eventually ceased to
be an adjunct school in 1903 when Miss
C. O'Donohue was appointed Acting
Head Teacher.
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School Faces Acute Overcrowding

The new acting Head Teacher was
instructed to enroll "only as many
pupils .... as could be accommodated"
in the small schoolroom. The
imposition of this severe restriction was
easier said that done, and caused further
deputations to call on the Minister of
Education on October 20, 1903, and
again on March 31, 1904, to request
increased accommodation. Two
Members of Parliament led the latter
Deputation, and soon afterwards the
Director himself, Frank Tate, visited the
two Braybrook schools. He was
shocked by the cramped unsatisfactory
conditions in which the children worked
especially at the Braybrook Junction
School, and immediately persuaded the
Minister to authorise the enlargement of
the school. This was the year that H. V.
McKay of Ballarat, purchased the
Braybrook Implement Company and
the surrounding land, and began
building houses for his workers. The
township was rapidly developing. It
was not till December 1905, however ,
that an additional wooden school room
36 ft. by 24 ft. was erected.

Meanwhile, at the end of 1904,
the Department purchased for £60 from
J. G. Johnson not only the school site
120 ft. by 210 ft. but also the adjoining
block 100 ft. by 210 ft. on the western
side.

Soon after the new school room
was built, the original room fell into
such disrepair that it was unable to be
used by the infant classes. So in July
1907 H. B. Chalmers, Hon. Secretary
of Braybrook Junction Progress

Association, wrote asking for it to be
repaired, as the school was again
suffering severe accommodation
problems. In November Alex Fraser,
who had become Hon. Secretary of the
Association, again wrote complaining
of the acute overcrowding at the school
and asking the Department to "give the
matter its earliest attention."

The official name of the school
was changed from Braybrook South or
Braybrook Junction to Sunshine on
September 30, 1907. The official name
of the station and settlement had
already been changed on August 6, in
honour of the brilliant philanthropic
industrialist Hugh V. McKay, the
inventor and producer of the famous
"Sunshine" Harvester Machine.

On April 1909, James F. Holden
was appointed Acting Head Teacher.
During June - July 1909 he and H. B.
Chalmers organised the leasing of the
Mechanics Institute Hall 60 ft. by 30 ft.,
for school purposes at a rental of 10/-
per week, payable monthly, and later
increased to £1 per week At the same
time, Jonathon T. Nash Correspondent
of the District Board of Advice, and J.
B. Garde of the Sunshine Progress
Association continued to urge the
Department to repair the old original
building, as "all the windows are
broken... and it is not fit to be used for
teaching the infant class."

On July 21, a windfall occurred.
Hugh V. McKay offered the
Department an acre of land adjoining
the school site on the west side for £45,
or for the low price of £37.10.0., if it



would agree to establish "a model
school" on it. At the same time, at the
request of H. V. McKay, A. Robinson
of "Royton", Hampshire Road,
Sunshine, offered the Department two
blocks of lands between the school site
and Hampshire Road. For the first
block which adjoined the school and
surrounded St. Mark's Church he
wanted the sum of £80. The second
block, extending from the Fire Brigade
Quarters to the corner of Derby and
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Hampshire Roads, he was prepared to
sell for £550, as it has erected on it 3
fine weatherboard slate roofed
residence. Finally, on October 13,
1909, J. B. Garde, a regular writer on
behalf of the Sunshine Progress
Association, strongly urged the
Department to take some action,
without knowing that on the previous
day it had already accepted H. V.
McKay's offer to sell the adjoining acre
of land for £45.
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e '* Sunshine "' Harvester Works, Braybrool, 1906.
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Size of the School still inadequate for the

Township's Needs

In November 1909, William Roach,
the new Head Teacher, stated that there
were 125 names on the roll with an
average attendance of 115, and that the
enrollment was rapidly increasing. So
J. B. Garde wrote again to the local
Member of Parliament, A. R.
Robertson asking him to urge the
Department to enlarge the school so
that it would not be necessary to
continue using the unsuitable
Mechanics Institute Hall. On December
10, 1909, District Inspector T. W.
Bothroyd issued a report recommending
the erection of an additional building so
that the school would be able to
accommodate a "minimum of 150
pupils". He stressed that the Town's
population was increasing rapidly, and
that H. V. McKay's Sunshine Harvester
Works alone employed 1200 men. He
finally stated that the old building was
not worth renovating, and should be
converted into a second shelter shed.

In March 1910 J. B. Garde wrote
personally to Frank Tate, and a month
later John Byatt, the special
Departmental Training Inspector, also
strongly recommended that Inspector
Bothroyd's suggestions be placed on the
urgent list of that year's estimates of
expenses. On September 8, 1910
Inspector James McRae, in a special
report, went further and recommended
that, "accommodation for at least 200
pupils be provided". He also added:
"There are now 165 children on the
rolls, and the school has rooms for only
70. Classes I and II are raught in a
leased hall about 400 yards from the
school. The providing of additional
accommodation is a very urgent
necessity...Ten (10) dual desks of
largest size, and another table are
urgently needed now". William Roach
lost no time in applying for the desks
and table the following day.

The accommodation problem was at

2
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School Improvements

last temporarily solved in August 1911
by erecting three wooden classrooms
(one 36 ft. by 24 ft., and two 26ft. by
24 ft.). At the official opening "the
children were entertained in picnic
Jfashion in the school grounds and there
were refreshments and prizes for
Sports'".

At the same time the original
portable building remaining on the site
was converted into a shelter shed by the
School Committee, whose Chairman
was Hugh McLean, and Hon. Secretary
D. B. Ferguson. This shelter shed was
mysteriously destroyed by fire three
years later. Asphalt paving, 354 square
yards of it was laid down at the same
time.

During 1912, 90 cypress trees

were planted along the north and west
boundaries of the school, and 80 gum
and pepper trees along the east and
south sides.

On Empire night (May 24, 1912)
the school committee took the children
to the Bioscope entertainment (earliest
Cinema) in the Sunshine Hall.

By July 1914 there were 261
pupils on the school roll, distributed on
the three rooms as follows:

Senior room (5, 6, 7, & 8th. grades) ...86
Middle room (3rd. & 4th. grades) ....... 72
Junior room 1st. & 2nd. grades) ........ 103

Total 261
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The Swimming Pool

During the summer of 1914-1915 a
Swimming Bath was constructed in the
school grounds at a cost of about £120,
half of which was subsidized by the
Department. John S. Porteous, the
correspondent of the School
Committee, played a leading part in
having the baths or pool constructed. A
large area around it was also tar paved.

By July 1915 there were 285
scholars on the roll, and an average
attendance of 260. Over 2000 men
were then employed at H. V. McKay's
Harvester Works. So in October that
year an additional pavilion classroom
30 ft. by 20 ft. was erected at the
school, and 30 more dual desks
supplied.

By March 1917 the school was
again suffering form growing pains, as
the net enrollment was then 333 and the
Annual Attendance more that 280. In
April 1919, after a further big increase
in attendance, two more wooden

classrooms, each 26 ft. 6 in. by 24 ft.
were erected at a total cost of about
£1000. At the request of William
Roach, an Head Teacher's office and
Teachers' Study Room were also
included.

"My father, Charlie Day helped to
build the swimming pool....that's where
I learnt to swim. Every so often we
would get our turn to clean out the pool
which we thought was good , no school
Jor the afternoon, we had to scrub the
concrete bottom, they used to drain all
the water out...."

Glad Crick nee Day

"The late Sir Frank Beaurepaire
was in the Education Department as a
swimming instructor. He visited our
school once a week. Fortunately for me
he took me on as a star pupil and taught
me to become a stunt swimmer."

Edith Fletcher nee Roach.
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1918

On July 1918 A Robinson of
"Royton", Hampshire Road, Sunshine,
again offered the Department his block
of land, including the "well built villa",
mentioned in previous correspondence
.... originally erected for a post office.

On this occasion he asked £1000
for the house and land. Three years
later , in July 1921, this corner block
(one and three quarter acres), on which
the present school is situated, was
purchased by the Technical School
Division of the Education Department.
The old Post Office building, which
used to stand right on the corner, was
occupied by the caretaker of the

b

Technical School.

By 1920 the canvas shutter and the
canvas door of the open air pavilion
classroom were so badly torn and
perished as to make this outside room
unuseable on cold winter days. Mrs.
W. G. Dripps complained about it to the
District Inspector, Dr. J. A. Leach and
the school medical Officer, Jane 8.
Grieg. So in January 1921 the building
was repaired and partly remodelled.

In October 1922 the school site
was 'properly fenced in" by G.
Nicholson in order to "keep our
wandering cattle etc." The Job cost
£64, half being paid by the Department.




Early Photographs




Class Photographs 1920's




